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                  September 12, 2018 

 

Beatrice L. Kephardt 

Department of the Air Force 

30
th

 Space Wing (AFSPC) 

30 CES/CEI 

1028 Iceland Avenue 

Vandenberg AFB CA 93437-6010 

 

Re:  ND-0026-18 Negative Determination, Department of the Air Force, bridge repair and 

erosion protection system maintenance at San Antonio Road West Bridge at Vandenberg Air 

Force Base 

  

Dear Ms. Kephardt: 

 

The Coastal Commission staff has received the above-referenced negative determination from 

the Department of the Air Force (Air Force) for bridge repair and erosion protection system 

maintenance at the San Antonio Road West Bridge at Vandenberg Air Force Base (Vandenberg), 

Santa Barbara County. Constructed in 1969, the Air Force describes San Antonio Road as a vital 

transportation connection to the northern part of Vandenberg. The project goals are to address 

erosion and undermining of existing gabions under the bridge and to provide for long-term 

bridge and gabion maintenance, thus maintaining this transportation connection.  

 

The Air Force will achieve project goals through the following activities: removing built-up 

sediment at the gabions (approximately 0.1 acre in surface area); manually removing channel 

vegetation, primarily arroyo willow (Salix lasiolepis), under and immediately adjacent to the 

bridge that is greater than two inches in diameter to within 3 inches of the ground or water 

surface; assessing the gabions following sediment and vegetation removal to determine the 

extent of any damage; and completing the necessary gabion repair and/or replacement. The 

proposed project also includes future annual inspections and potential vegetation removal to 

maintain the bridge erosion protection system. The Air Force estimates that these activities will 

affect 0.16 acres of willow riparian habitat.  

 

Prior to bridge maintenance activities, the Air Force will dewater the project site by diverting the 

active creek channel through a culvert installed and removed according to the specifications of a 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS)-approved biological monitor. Two upland construction 

staging areas will be re-seeded with native vegetation (grasses and shrubs) following 

construction activities: an approximately 0.4 acre site south of San Antonio Road and an 

approximately 0.12 acre site north of the road. At these staging areas, cranes will place and 

remove a skid loader and container in the dewatered channel to facilitate sediment removal. 
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To mitigate impacts to riparian habitat, the Air Force identified a 0.48 acre mitigation site 

approximately 0.75 miles downstream of the bridge. As summarized in the project’s Mitigation 

and Monitoring Plan and clarified through further communication with Air Force Staff, at this 

site the Air Force will clear invasive vegetation, plant willow poles and other riparian species, 

and monitor riparian vegetation establishment and growth for a minimum of five years or until 

success criteria are achieved. The Air Force will provide Commission staff with reports prepared 

as part of this monitoring program.   

 

Gabion repair activities will occur outside of the rainy season and last for 90 days, and future 

annual vegetation removal subsequently will occur on an as-needed basis. Activities at the 

mitigation site will begin with two years of initial site preparation, followed by willow and 

riparian planting in the third year and then monitoring as described above.  

 

The draft Environmental Assessment (EA) analyzes several project alternatives, including 

complete replacement of the bridge, replacement of the gabions with rip rap, covering the 

gabions with concrete to eliminate willow growth, and a no action alternative. The Air Force 

selected the proposed project as the preferred alternative after considering the potential greater 

environmental effects of other alternatives.  

 

San Antonio Creek provides habitat for three species that are listed under the federal Endangered 

Species Act: the unarmored threespine stickleback (Gasterosteus aculeatus), tidewater goby 

(Eucyclogobius newberryi), and the California red-logged frog (Rana draytonii). As clarified in 

the draft EA and the USFWS Biological Opinion for the project, 32 habitat and species-specific 

protection measures will be incorporated into the project. Coastal Commission staff agrees that 

these measures are adequate to protect these species.   

 

During project development, the Air Force consulted with the California State Historic 

Preservation Office and the Santa Ynez Band of the Chumash Indians. According to the draft 

EA, the Santa Ynez Band of the Chumash Indians determined that no impacts to cultural sites 

would occur and a Native American monitor would be unnecessary.  

 

In conclusion, the Coastal Commission staff agrees that the proposed project would not 

adversely affect coastal zone resources. We therefore concur with your negative determination 

made pursuant to 15 CFR Section 930.35 of the NOAA implementing regulations. Please contact 

John Weber of the Commission staff at (415) 904-5245 if you have any questions regarding this 

matter. 

           Sincerely, 

 
            (for)  JOHN AINSWORTH 

           Executive Director 

 

cc:   CCC – South Central Coast Office  

 US Army Corps of Engineers- Los Angeles District 


